ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS COW TTEE
April 23, 2002
3:45 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or CGene Therriault, Chair
Senat or Randy Phillips, Vice Chair
Senat or Ben Stevens

Senat or Bettye Davis

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Rick Hal ford
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 331(STA)
"An Act relating to appointnent of persons to positions that
require confirmation by the legislature; and providing for an
effective date."

MOVED CSHB 331( STA) OUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 344(STA)
"An Act increasing fees for driver's licenses, instruction
permts, and identification cards; and providing for an effective
date."

MOVED CSHB 334( STA) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 361
"An Act relating to coordination of the application, review,
deci sion, and appeal process for certain project permts, |eases,
pl ans, noti ces, di sposal s, | i censes, pr ef erences, grants,
reservations, approvals, and sales; relating to the Al aska
Coastal Policy Council and the Al aska Coastal Managenent Program
rel ocating certain functions of the office of nmanagenent and
budget to a statutorily created division of project assistance in
the Ofice of the Governor; repealing the Environnental
Procedures Coordination Act; and providing for an effective
date. ™

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 363

" An Act rel ating to el ecti oneering comuni cati ons and
comuni cations intended to influence the outcone of an election
and to canpaign msconduct in the second degree; and providing

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- April 23, 2002



for an effective date."
HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HB 331 — See State Affairs m nutes dated 4/2/02.
HB 344 — No previous action to record.
SB 361 — No previous action to record.
SB 363 — No previous action to record.

W TNESS REG STER

Li nda Syl vester

Aide to Representative Pete Kott

Al aska State Capitol, Room 204

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 331 and HB 344

Mary Marshburn

Director

Department of Adm nistration

PO Box 110200

Juneau, AK 99811-0200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 344

Marty Rutherford

Deputy Conm ssi oner

Department of Natural Resources

400 W1 | oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 361

Patrick Gal vin

Director

Di vi sion of Governnental Coordi nation
P. O. Box 110030

Juneau, AK 99811-0030

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 361

Kurt Fredriksson

Deputy Conm ssi oner

Depart ment of Environnental Conservation
410 WI 1 oughby Suite 303

Juneau, AK 99801-1795

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 361

Joe Bal ash
Staff to Senate State Affairs Conmmttee

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 23, 2002



Al aska State Capitol, Room 121
Juneau, AK 99801-1182
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned provisions of SB 363

Dana 4 son

Box 5438

Wasilla, AK 99654

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 361

Bonni e Jack

1063 W 20™ Ave

Anchor age 99503-1714

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 363

Brooke M| es

Director

Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion

2221 E. Northern Lights Rm 128

Anchor age, AK 99508-4149

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 363

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-24, SIDE A

CHAI RVAN CGENE THERRIAULT <called the Senate State Affairs
Commttee neeting to order at 3:45 p.m Present were Senators
Davis, Phillips, Stevens and Chairman Therriault.

#HB 331

HB 331- PRESENTMVENT OF GOVERNOR S APPO NTEES

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT t ook up HB 331.

MS. LI NDA SYLVESTER, Aide to Representative Pete Kott, said that
the statute was drafted in a convoluted way. She explained the
color-coded statute in the packet before the Committee. The
yel | ow hi ghlighted information was general |anguage dealing with
initial presentnments nmade by the Governor to the Legislature.
The blue highlighted information deals wth the specific
situation of presentnents that follow later in the session,
typically when the Legislature fails to confirm a presentnent.
The pink highlighted information is the general discussion about
how presentnents and confirmations are to be handl ed. HB 331
seeks to clarify and clean up anbiguities in the statute. It is
uncl ear whet her the Legislature can confirm an appoi ntnent during
a special session. Based on opinions fromthe |egislative |ega

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 23, 2002



departnent and ot her procedures fromthe statute, it is believed
that the intent of the statute is that all presentnments and
confirmations occur during the regular session. HB 331 has
cl eaned that up and changed sone tinefranes that are in the
current statute that put the confirmations outside of the regul ar
sessi on.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions from
comm ttee nenbers.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if the blue highlighted section was the
only one bei ng changed.

MS. SYLVESTER answered yes. The bill takes out the tinefranes,
substitutes “five days” with “imredi ately” and renoves a twenty-
day provision saying the Legislature has to confirma presentnent
wi thin 20 days of receipt fromthe Governor.

SENATOR STEVENS said that in AS 39.05.080(1)(B) the words “on or
before” were bei ng added and asked when t he boards expired.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said they expire all throughout the year.

MS. SYLVESTER explained that when the process was set up at
st at ehood, each appoi ntee was put on a schedule. Since then, the
timeline was determ ned by when vacancies occurred. The only
tineline that is in the statute pertains to presentnent and
confirmation.

SENATOR STEVENS said the bill stated, “persons to be appointed to
fill a position or nenbership, the term of which will expire on
or before March 1 during that session of the |egislature.”

MS. SYLVESTER said the statute encourages the Legislature to
address the presentnents during the session as early as possible.
This includes all of the positions the Governor filled during the
interimand all the positions that wll expire before March 1.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT asked if there were other questions. He said
that he had not prepared a CS and asked if there were any
anendnents from commttee nenbers. He made note of the zero
fiscal note.

SENATOR RANDY PHILLIPS noved to pass CS HB 331 (STA) from the
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal note.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT noted that the CS was the House State Affairs

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- April 23, 2002



version of the bill

CSHB 331(STA) noved from conmttee with attached fiscal note and
i ndi vi dual recomendati ons.

#

#HB 344

HB 344- 1 NCREASE DRI VER S LI CENSE/ PERM T FEES

MS. SYLVESTER said that HB 344 was introduced by the House Rul es
Commttee at the request of the Division of Mdtor Vehicles (DW).

HB 344 increases the fees for drivers’ licenses and ID cards by
$5.00 and learners’ permts by $10.00. It allows DW to
i npl enent a conversion to a digital drivers [licensing system
Exanpl es of what a drivers’ license mght ook Iike were in the
packets. She pointed out that the information on the drivers’
licenses is stipulated in statute and this bill would not have

any inpact on that. The back of the |license would have a barcode
that would allow the police to scan and protect the |icensee from
having their private details broadcast.

She said the fee increase would go into the General Fund and is
expected to increase revenues by $750,000 to $900,000. The cost
of inplenenting the conversion is expected to be $500, 000, which
is for the conputer systens only. DW already has the funds for
t he equi pnent.

She said that Alaska is one of the three remaining states stil
using the old Polaroid personal identification system By
converting, Alaska wll step up its efforts to ensure the
integrity of this nation’s individual identification system
Since Septenber 11, there has been focus on the need to harden
the drivers’ license system as a security mneasure. There was
di scussion about switching to a national identification system
but that idea was abandoned. However, there is still a need for
i ncreased security and Alaska’s identification systemis a weak
poi nt . She explained that the ID card is considered to be a
“breeder docunent,” which can be parlayed into other docunents
such as airline tickets, passports, checking accounts, firearns
permts, credit <cards, etc. The drivers’ license is the
cornerstone of the identity theft phenonenon, which resulted in
$7 billion in | osses | ast year.

She said another problem with the current system is underage
i ndi vi dual s obtaining or manufacturing fraudulent identification
cards. The packet contains resolutions and coments from
restricted sales individuals who support the conversion of the

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 23, 2002



system

M5. SYLVESTER explained that the drivers’ |icense has becone a
critical conponent in our society’s security, both personal and
financi al . The State of Alaska has a responsibility to ensure
the integrity of that system Yet there is a |lot of anecdotal
information about how the identification ~cards can be
fraudul ently obtai ned. DW doesn’t have the ability to pull up
phot ogr aphs. Sonmeone can easily steal your Social Security
Nunber or mail and go into the DW and if they mtch your
bionetric data, they can walk out with your identification. | f
you travel and you |lose your license or have it stolen, DW is
also unable to replace your lost identification wth vyour
phot ograph. This makes it very difficult to get back to Al aska
W thout one of the only proofs that the airline wll consider as
an identification form

She said Polaroid is in Chapter 11 bankruptcy and has sold their
personal identification business to a conpany called D gimark,
who will only supply Alaska with filmuntil the end of the year
The other two states that still use the Polaroid system Cklahoma
and Rhode Island, have already put out RFP's for digital systens.
This will also inpair Alaska’'s ability to get comrercial -grade
Polaroid film She said that when digital cameras canme onto the
market, it was the death knell of the old Polaroid drivers’
| i cense system

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked Mary Marshburn to speak.

MS. MARY MARSHBURN, Director of DWW, said that when DW started
pursuing a digital system there were seven “photo states,”

meani ng states that still use the instant photograph process. At
the beginning of the session, there were only three *“photo
states.” Now Alaska is the only state without even a RFP out for
services for a digital |icensing system

She said the current system is a manual process; it uses
preprinted forms, instant photographs and a |am nated security
pouch. It is subject to theft, fraud and alteration. Security
is the biggest advantage to a digital system It is nore

difficult to alter or replicate because it does not use
preprinted fornms or pouches or instant photos. The information
is conputer generated and fused onto a chip. Conputer generation
and flexibility enables DW to place nore and nore conplex
security features into the license. The photo can be stored on a
server, which allows DW personnel to access it to verify your
identity the next tinme you need a |license or when you travel.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 23, 2002



M5. MARSHBURN sai d the biggest benefactor of a conversion would
be | aw enforcenent. HB 344 enjoys the support of |aw enforcenent,
including the Alaska State Troopers and the Minicipality of
Anchorage Police Departnent, which is conputerizing its cars and
are looking forward to the change. Al cohol and tobacco sellers
are also in support of HB 344 because a new system can help them
wi th their underage problem

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if people regularly came up to the
counter at DW to conmmt license fraud and alteration.

M5. MARSHBURN said that in the past four nonths in one Anchorage
of fice alone they have had five arrests.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT asked if there would be an enbedded chip or
j ust a barcode.

M5. MARSHBURN said that although the disc upon which the inage
and license data is fused is referred to as a “chip,” it is not a
“chip” as we think of a conputer chip.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT asked whether the barcode contained the
information or if it contained the |icense nunber that would
access the information through the conputer system

M5. MARSHBURN asked if he was |ooking at the exanmple in the
packet .

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT sai d yes.

M5. MARSHBURN said that the barcode would contain all of the
information required by law, such as nane, address, date of
birth, sex, hair, eyes and weight, along with any driving
restrictions, but not the Social Security Nunber.

CHAl RVAN THERRI AULT pointed out that the wunderage |icense
exanples in the packet were laid out vertically. He asked if
this was the intention of DW to do this.

M5. MARSHBURN said she was excited to have the licenses be
formatted that way. DW wants to keep the adult licenses in a
hori zontal format and the underage licenses in a vertical format.
It hel ps everyone who has to deal with the age group. She noted
that the vertical license says “under 21 until” along the top.
Wth the current system the alcohol or tobacco sal esperson has
to look at the birth date and calculate the age, which can be
difficult and tinme consumng. Using the “under 21 until” system
woul d be much easier for them

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- April 23, 2002



CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were other questions for M.
Marshburn from the commttee nenbers. He asked if Del Smth had
comments or if he was just there to answer questions.

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER DEL SM TH, Departnment of Public Safety, said
he was there to answer questions.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS asked if Social Security Nunbers were off the
drivers’ |icense now.

M5. MARSHBURN said they were. As of |ast year, Social Security
Nunbers were not allowed on the face of the drivers’ ||icenses,
nor woul d they be in the barcode.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT pointed out that the increased fees woul
cause increased revenues of $900,000 and the contractual |
system cost woul d be $500,000 the first year.

d
T

SENATOR PHILLIPS asked Mks. Mar shburn if DWW would take
responsibility for the fees being raised and not tell conplaining
custoners that the Legislature did this.

M5. MARSHBURN sai d yes. The fees are equal to $1.00 per year,
and they were |last raised eleven years ago. She has no qual ns
saying it is well worth it.

SENATOR PHILLIPS said he’d been through this before where the
enpl oyees said the Legislature did it.

M5. MARSHBURN prom sed that woul dn’t happen.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT asked if there was anyone el se that wi shed to
testify on HB 344. There was no one. He asked if there were any
anmendnents from conm ttee nenbers.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVIS noved to pass CS HB 334 (STA) from the
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal note.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any objections.

CSHB 334(STA) noved fromcommttee with attached fiscal note and

i ndi vi dual recomendati ons.
#

#SB 361

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 23, 2002



SB 361- PERM T COORDI NATI ON & COASTAL ZONE MGV

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT announced that the commttee would now take
up SB 361.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT, sponsor of SB 361, said that his intention
was solely to introduce the bill; he didn't expect final action
this year. He said that the regulators and the regulated felt
that the regulatory system that had conme together over the years
was cunbersone in areas. He pointed out that there were
processes that were not coordinated anpbngst state agencies and
there was sone duplication in the processes. The problens had
been dealt with over the years through a piece-neal system He
thought that it was tine for the Legislature to |look at the
entire system and see if it was time to start from scratch and
put together a better-coordi nated system He has been invol ved
in this overall issue for a nunber of years and has talked to
division directors and comm ssioners and found that there is a
| ot of interest fromstate enpl oyees that the Legi sl ature | ook at
changes. The Governor introduced a bill a few years ago that was
used as a basis for SB 361. He doesn’t propose that this is a
perfect bill at this stage. He wanted to get sone input fromthe
state agencies, the regulated conmunities and the citizen
wat chdogs as to what was beneficial in the bill and what areas of
the bill mght have pitfalls so that he can work on the bill wth
those groups during the interim He announced that he wanted to
aim for better coordination anongst the agencies so that an
appel l ant who is appealing one issue didn't have different appeal
tinmelines in different agencies. He wants to create a nore
stream ined and uniformpermtting system

M5. MARTY RUTHERFORD, Deputy Conm ssioner of the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources (DNR), said that Pat Galvin would be the |ead
spokesperson for the State.

MR PATRI CK  GALVI N, Director of Dvision of Governnenta
Coordination in the Ofice of the Governor, said his division is
responsible for the inplenentation of the Alaska Coastal
Managenment Program SB 361 is very simlar to SB 186, which was
introduced at the Governor’s request in 1997. They are | ooking
for an efficient decision making process that elimnates
obstacles to devel opnent while allowng the public to influence
those decisions, provides for easier and fewer applications,
all ows coordinated review of all agency permt requirenents for a
particul ar project, consolidates public notices and provides for
a nore efficient appeal process. In Septenber 1997 after the
Governor’s bill was introduced, the Admnistration had a

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 23, 2002



streamlining workshop wth participants from industries,
conservation groups, local governnments and state agencies to talk
about the principles in the context of the bill that was in front
of the Legislature at that tinme. A ngjority of the group agreed
that these were inportant issues that needed work, but could not
agree on an approach to achieve them Although the bill didn't
nove through the Legislature, the Admnistration has since
continued to look at ways to achieve the goals wthout
| egi sl ati on.

MR. GALVIN said they |ooked at ways in which the individual
agenci es can better use the general permtting process and ot her
such vehicles to concentrate the efforts of permtters and the
public on those projects that have the greatest inpact or occur
in the nost sensitive locations. They have undertaken a variety
of projects to inprove and sinplify the permt applications,

including increasing the use of the Internet. They have al so
i ncreased the |l evel of coordination of the agencies in the public
notice process. In the area of coastal managenent, they have

drafted guidance to staff on process-related issues to inprove
the level of permt coordination that occurs in the consistency
revi ew process. They are in the final stages of a revision to
t he coastal nmnagenent consistency review regulations to provide
for nore efficient coordination in the process. There are al so
nore specific things they have done.

He said while they ve nmade progress in the past few years, they
recognize that there is still a lot of room for inprovenent.
They believe this is a tinmely issue, but given the anount of tine
left in the Session and the conplexity of the issues involved,
they agree that it’s not reasonable to expect a solution in the
next few weeks.

He wanted to point out a few areas of concern in SB 361. There
is a lack of specificity regarding the authority of the
coordinating agency in relation to the permtting agencies. This
is particularly troublesone in the non-coastal areas where the
coordi nated approach hasn’t been used before. It will raise an
i ssue when the coordinating agency doesn’t have a decision to
make on its own and they are only doing the admnistrative
process in coordinating the decisions of the other agencies.
This may cause a problem when sone of the permt decisions

conflict with each other. Currently, through the consistency
review process, they have a common set of guidelines that they
can use to resolve the disputes. The current bill my create an

undue burden on snaller projects by the need for project-specific
negotiations with regard to sone tinelines that my not be
necessary for smaller projects. There is a lack of specificity

in the bill regarding tinelines and tine requirenents. The
tineline that is designed to satisfy the ains of the bill m ght
interfere with other statutory requirenents. The bill limts the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- April 23, 2002



role of coastal districts and |ocal governnents as conpared to
the current process in the Coastal Managenent Program He noted
that there would be a fiscal inpact in bringing the coordinating
review outside of the coastal zone because the work has never
been done before.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if DNR was acting as a |ead agency on
| arge m ning projects. |If so, there had been sone experience.

MR, GALVIN affirned that a handful of |large mning projects have
gone through a coordinated review outside of the coastal zone.
They were referring to the rest of the projects, which have not
gone through a coordinated review. The section dealing with
adm ni strative appeals needs sone specificity with regard to who
decides the issue when there are multiple permts that m ght be
inplicated by an appeal. They are encouraged to hear that both
| eading mmjor party gubernatorial candidates have expressed an
interest in resolving this issue and the Division would like to
work with the Conmmttee during the interim and encouraged
participation of the other major stakeholders, such as |ocal
governnments, project applicants, conservation groups and tri bes.

CHAI RVMAN THERRI AULT asked if M. Galvin had | ooked at the |ist of
licensing permts that would be covered under SB 361 on page 3
and 4. He asked if there was anything that needed to be added or
omtted.

MR. GALVIN said that they had | ooked at the list but hadn't yet
cone to an official position. The list is different from that
whi ch had been presented by the Governor in SB 186. There are
certain DNR authorizations that weren't in the previous bill but
are in this bill and vice versa. They haven't had the discussion
as to the appropriate way to handle that. They noted that there
are sone Departnment of Transportation authorizations that are
included in the bill but are currently not subject to a
coordi nated review through the Coastal Mnagenent Program The
list would need nore work and would require looking at each
i ndi vidual authorization and thinking about whether or not a
coor di nat ed approach was required.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if the allowance for public input into
the process was sufficient.

MR, GALVIN said there are a nunber of people who could better
answer that question. The principle behind the original bill was
that if +the processes could be clarified and nore easily
understood, then those could be brought together and create a
single review that would nmake it easier for the public to
participate in the process. To the extent that SB 361 is able to
achieve that, they would feel that there was no decrease in the
public’'s opportunity to participate.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- April 23, 2002



CHAIl RMAN THERRI AULT asked if there were questions from other
conm ttee nenbers.

M5. RUTHERFORD added that DNR had been pursuing sone efficiencies

since the Governor’s bill had been introduced in 1997. She
expl ai ned that permtting efficiency 1is not only about
coordinated notices and reviews, but al so about maki ng

information accessible to the public and easy to use and
elimnating the nunber of tines the public nust apply for permts
and how they paid for their fees. Those are sone of the areas
where DNR has made i nprovenents.

She said anendnents to the oil and gas leasing statutes allow
themto offer unleased oil and gas properties on an annual basis
wi thin |arge geographical areas. They have undertaken a |arge
m ne coordi nated revi ew process which has been very effective in
bringi ng the agencies and the public into an integrated process.

She said there have been nmany other |esser streamining
i nprovenents. For instance, mning clains are now bei ng revi ewed

in 160-acre bl ocks. These Dblocks also facilitate online
permtting, which will be available next year. She noted that
DNR now allows paynent of mning rents online. Starting next
fiscal year, they will allow mners to file and pay for clains at

the recorders office only without having to go to anot her counter
to make rent paynents.

In the area of | and-use permts, she said comrercial recreational
permts for spike canps can now be applied for over the counter.
By the end of this calendar year, DNR will|l have |and-use permt
applications, processing and permt issuance online.

She said that in the area of material sales, DNR has increased
the allowabl e over-the-counter contract from 100 cubic yards to
200 cubic yards, which decreased the workload associated wth
negotiating contracts and the nunber of tines they had to
negoti ate a contract.

In the area of land sales, she said DNR now has a website of
| ands that are available over-the-counter or are going to be
offered in land sales. Although it has increased their workload
significantly, it is good for the public. By the end of 2002

the public will be able to purchase over-the-counter parcels
online. The public will also be able to nmake a sealed bid offer
for a parcel online. Data fromland purchases will automatically
be entered into the state land records system which wll
el imnate sone double entry.

MS. RUTHERFORD said DNR has other areas of inprovenents, such as
online access to publications, land title information, records

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- April 23, 2002



research and park cabin reservations. The efficiencies are
inportant to the public and to how the agency does business. She
bel i eves the inprovenents that have happened and the inprovenents
that are in the wearly stages wll effect how a permt-
streamining bill is crafted.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions from
commttee nenbers. He asked Ms. Rutherford if there was anything
specific to DNRin SB 361 that concerned her.

M5. RUTHERFORD said that the list on pages 3 and 4 was of
concern. They would like to look at it in the future in terns of

what the bill wll eventually do. There are sonme on the list
they felt needed to be elimnated. Some of the inprovenments
they’ve made will change how they approach various permtting

processes and thus may not be necessary as part of the |arger
process.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if she felt that the process should be
determ ned before deciding what it should apply to.

M5. RUTHERFORD said that sonme of details of the various permts
woul d be appropriate in the overall discussion of the bill.

KURT FREDRI CKSSON, Deputy Comm ssioner of the Departnent of
Envi ronnental Conservation (DEC), said that DEC was one of the
primary permtting agencies in the state and SB 361 woul d have a
| arge inpact on DEC. Permt streamlining and sinplification has
been a topic of concern in DEC s effort to do a better job with
permt developnment while allowing public participation and
carrying out their mssion of protecting public health and the
envi ronnent . DEC has taken a nunber of initiatives, such as
wor ki ng wi th stakehol der groups in their water program  Sone of
the products of that have been seen before the Legislature this
year.

He said DEC has worked with workgroups on how they can use
gener al permts to streamine sone of the permts while
protecting the environment. Where and how general permts are
applied is the key. He said that DEC has general permts for |og
transfer facilities, seafood processing facilities and storm
wat er discharges. DEC is automating the general permts so that
they will be available over the Internet. DEC is al so nmaking
progress in their air prograns. They undertook a benchmarking
study to look at how other states used the general permtting
process and |ooked to see how they can take advantage of the

experience of other states and apply it in Al aska. They have
entertained ideas such as permt by rule and standard permt
conditions and are noving ahead on that. They have taken steps

to make things easier electronically. He wanted to caution the
commttee that coordinated project permtting should not be

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- April 23, 2002



applied to all cases. For large mnes and coastal managenent, it
does nmake sense.

TAPE 02-24, SIDE B
4:30 p.m

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER FREDRI CKSSON said that the pipeline office
was a good exanpl e where agencies cane together to streamine the
permtting process for TAPS. However, if you are only dealing
with a small project, a coordinated review is not necessary as it
is just as effective for the applicant to go through the
coursework with the agencies. He said that there are tines when
it is nore efficient for DEC to focus on a DEC i ssue rather than
being brought into a |arger debate. He noted that sonetines
permtting is nmade easier when you have good information. Wen
they have good anbient water and air quality data in site-
specific information, it can go a long ways to resolving
conflicts and answering questions. The lack of such information
can delay a project. DEC thinks that workgroups are the best way
to deal wth issues and as this issue noves forward they suggest
that all the other stakeholders should be involved in the
process.

He said he hasn’'t had the chance to go over the list in detail

but DEC will do so. One item that concerned him subsection (b)
on page 6 addressing project application and listing the various
parties that the applications would be available to or would be
notified when applications were received. They have cone across

this issue when they do an oil spill prevention and response
contingency plan when they also alert the Prince WIIliam Sound
and Cook Inlet Regional Citizens’ Advisory Council. He thinks

that the agency should neke an effort to contact |oca
governments when dealing with devel opnent or permtted activity.
He didn't notice local governnments in the list, although the
coastal districts in the coastal context are one in the sane as
| ocal governnents.

He said that DEC has | ooked at their appeal procedures and have
been working on updating their regulations. One of the nore
i nportant updated regulations deals with allowing the parties to
settle their differences in an informal process when the parties
are willing to work together to resolve issues. He feels the
appeal s process section of the bill is sonething he would like to
explore to make it a rigid and formal process when necessary, but
still have a way for parties to conme together through a nediated
effort to find a way of resolving conflict.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT asked if there were questions from conmmttee
nenbers.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- April 23, 2002



M5. DANA OLSON said she appreciated that this bill was being held
to get further input. She feels that the issue needs nore tine
to be | ooked at. She feels it would be inportant to get input
from people who are affected and that they be allowed to
participate in the planning process. This would allow the
Comm ttee insight into things that aren’'t generally considered in
permts and their affects on people. She noted that Title 39 was
not in SB 361. In 1987, the Legislature nmade a quasi-judici al
decision requiring that the 1984 Chase Agricultural Honestead
Lottery undergo a provision under Title 38, which was not funded.
This has left her in linbo for years. She would Ilike the
Committee to address the issue with her as a go-between between
her and DNR because the systemis broken. Her property entrance
is still valid but she is required to do sonething that she can’'t
do by herself. The court case is an enforceable policy of the
Coastal Managenent Act. This could affect other interests beside
her sel f. She would like it resolved one way or another by the
Commi ttee. She feels this should be codified in law and it
requires sone consideration of her interests and DNR s and the
State’s interests. She would like some neans to participate in
t he process.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if she was part of a coastal service
ar ea.

M5. OLSON said that she lives in the coastal community of Knik.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT asked if she was part of their service
district.

M5. COLSON said that she was in the Mat-Su Borough coastal
district but the Mat-Su coastal district had been ineffective in
addressing the community’s concerns. The district has been cited
in a federal lawsuit in the past and is a systemthat needs to be

| ooked at. She pointed out that they were not here today and
t hus she can only assune that they weren't interested. She |ives
there and she is interested. She is willing to volunteer her

time and effort to provide input if the Conmttee is wlling to
l'i sten.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there was anyone el se who w shed to
testify.

SB 361 was held in conmttee.
#

#SB 363

SENATE STA COW TTEE -15- April 23, 2002



SB_363- CAMPAI GN_FI NANCE PROVI SI ONS

CHAI RVAN THERI AULT said that the comrittee would now take up SB
363 regarding issue ads and what is taking place in Congress in
regards to soft-noney issue ads. SB 363 tries to achieve a
better understanding of issue ads and express advocacy and the
line between them He said that he is trying to come up with a
wor kabl e definition of an “electioneering comunication.” Thi s
noves towards express advocacy and has a clear intent to shape
t he outconme of an el ection.

MR. JOE BALASH, staff to Senate State Affairs Conmttee, pointed
out that on page 1, line 11 in the section describing the “paid
for by” statenent that all comrunications are supposed to have,
the |l anguage “and the total production costs of the advertising”
was added. He said that section was intended to be part of the
overall disclosure in Sec. 2 dealing with when a communication is
made by a group.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked if that was a drafting error.
MR. BALASH sai d yes.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked if M. Balash was proposing to del ete that
| anguage and add it in Section 2.

MR. BALASH said yes, it could be inserted into line 2 on page 2.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if M. Balash had spoken to |egal
drafters about that.

MR. BALASH sai d yes.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS asked if that would be reflected in the
conmittee substitute.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT sai d yes. He said that he planned to take
public testinony today to figure out areas of concern in SB 363.
There m ght be sone additions, deletions or clarifications.

SENATOR PHILLIPS said that he wanted to clarify that for the
record.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT sai d that was sonething that should have been
caught before it was introduced.

MR. BALASH noted the |anguage on page 3 starting on line 10
dealing with a definition of an electioneering comunication,
“Must, when read as a whole, and with limted reference to
ext er nal events, be susceptible of no ot her reasonabl e
interpretation but as an exhortation to vote for or against a

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- April 23, 2002



specific candidate,” cane directly from a decision in the ‘80’ s
by the 9" CGrcuit Court of Appeals. The United States Suprene
Court has one mmjor decision saying that express advocacy my be
regul ated as speech and issue advocacy is in the free zone of
political expression. However, the Court didn't provide nuch
gui dance as to where to draw the line. The 9" Circuit Court did
issue a decision using the language cited in the bill, which
wasn’t accepted by the United States Suprenme Court for further
consideration, so Al aska takes that as the rule of |aw.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if the Supreme Court chose not to take
the issue up to provide clarification, therefore the 9" Circuit
deci si on becane the | aw.

MR. BALASH said that was correct.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said that case was the Furgatch case. He
noted that there were a nunber of exanples in the canpaign
finance paper in the packets of radio or TV advertisenents that
were clearly issue ads. He said that issue ads can easily becone
express advocacy with the change of a few words and there is a
gray area in between issue ads and express advocacy. Rather than
try to draw a clear |ine between issue ads and express advocacy,
SB 363 sought to identify “electioneering comrunications” and
determ ne what kinds of limtations or disclosure they can have
on the gray area between advocacy and expression. The courts had
said that if you wite a law and it’s overly vague and broad and
people can't tell what side of the line they fall on, it has a
chilling effect on expression. The McCain-Feingold |egislation
drew a line of 30 days froma primary el ection and 60 days froma
general election so the courts couldn’'t say that people didn't
know and therefore out of fear they are refraining from
expressing thensel ves. He said that SB 363 tries to draw the
line between “el ectioneering comrunication” and when the person
clearly is trying to inpact the outcone of an election. In the
Buckl ey v. Valeo case, the court put together a list of words
that indicated express advocacy, using the phrase “such as.”
Some of the courts have said that if you don’t use the words on
that |ist, then you re okay. However, the |anguage of the
deci sion says “words such as,” so he feels that it wasn't the
intent of the court to provide a definitive Iist of words.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said SB 363 attenpts to conme up with a common
sense definition and application of that definition in
restrictions and requirenments for disclosure of the source of
that noney as we get closer and closer to an el ection.

M5. BONNIE JACK said that she is glad that the bill clarifies the
| ocation of total production costs of advertising, but she still
has a question about that. Most of the tine during a canpaign it
is hard to cone up with total production costs when you haven’t

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- April 23, 2002



conpl eted the project yet. But SB 363 asks for total production
costs. She used an exanple of initial costs of printed materi al
as conpared with reprinting costs. She wondered if you included
the first tinme you printed it, or if you only included the
reprinting costs. She noted that the sane sort of thing would
happen if you made a TV commercial, and then used the sound track
fromthe TV commercial and put it in a radio conmmercial, how do
you determ ne what the total costs were? She wondered if you
included in the radio costs the cost of the TV comrercial. She
said that she is confused and doesn’'t know what this bill is
getting at. She noted that the bill had been introduced on the
18" on April and she would like to see a sponsor letter to
explain why this was done. She noted that the Al aska Public
O fices Conmm ssion (APCC) was all about disclosure, and if you
just disclosed everything, including the costs, where the nobney
cones from what the expenses are, she would think that would

take care of it. She cited, the language “a party group, or
nongroup entity making a communication” in line 14 on page 1.
She asked why you should have to repeat all this. If you're
advocating for a candidate, you have to file with APCC. She
doesn’t understand the purpose behind this. Page 3, line 12

makes reference to a “vote for or against a specific candidate.”
She wondered about ball ot propositions or initiatives? She feels

the bill was put together too quickly and the drafting error
proves that point. She feels that there was not a | ot of thought
put into the bill. It bothers her that this type of bill was put

together so late in a sine die session. She would like to see SB
363 thrown out.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT said that was why there is a conmttee
process.

M5. BROOKE MLES, Director of APOC, said that this bill would
make no change to canpaign disclosure |aw except to add

additional requirenents for all candidates, groups, non-group
entities and parties to place the production costs at the end of
the “paid for by” disclosure. She pointed out that production

costs could be professional services donated, which is permtted
as a result of SB 103, and therefore would not seen in the
production costs. There are requirenents by the Comm ssion that

this information has to be readable and the costs wll also have
to be readabl e. FCC costs would also be included in radio and
t el evi si on. Al'l comunications that are intended to influence
the outconme of an election or a ballot proposition are currently
covered by the canpaign disclosure |aw, which requires
registration, peri odic reports and identification of

comuni cations. She said that if Sec. 2 is intended to require a
24- hour expenditure report, which was part of the original
canpai gn disclosure |aw but was thrown out by Buckley v. Valeo,
then it should probably be done in the sections that talk about
reports, that being Sec. 1 of Sec. 040 of the | aw

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 23, 2002



She said that APOC hasn’t had the chance to look at the bill
closely yet. She offers her comments on behalf of the Conmmi ssion
staff who have | ooked at the bill. APOC discussed the question
of drawing a line between issue advocacy and express advocacy at
| ength during their neeting in March and determ ned that it would
be best for them to | ook at each case on a case-by-case basis.

She noted that election communications rules are all in AS 15.56
and the enforcenent burden of that would fall to the Division of
El ections, the Conm ssion has no authority over that. But when

peopl e are | ooking to the canpaign disclosure |aw to get gui dance
on what's required, they my not fall to the definition of
el ecti oneering comruni cations in AS 15. 60.

She noted that the fiscal note sent over by the APOC was nodest,
but SB 363 would inpact APOC because approximately 80% of the
inquiries pending to nove toward conplaint actions start wth
“paid for by” questions and concerns. If SB 363 were to pass,
they would have to disclose total production costs, which m ght
be inaccurate or mssing, that would have to match what is
finally reported on the canpai gn disclosure reports or they would
be subject to a penalty of $50 per day for a false or inaccurate
claim The fiscal note would include funding for a hearing, sone
travel to conduct training to help people and printing paper and
postage. She noted that this would be the second mmj or canpai gn
di sclosure revision and it would occur during the nobst active
el ection session in over ten years and APCC s budget had al ready
been significantly decreased.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT said that he wanted to tal k about the 15-5
reports.

M5. M LES asked if he was referring to the contributor reports.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said he wunderstood that this mght be a
hol dover from previous tinmes in which APOC personnel expended
time and energy needlessly. He asked if this was sonething that
no | onger serves a useful purpose.

5:00 pm

M5. MLES said that it could save a little tine by no |onger
needing to enter the 15-5 reports into their database. The 15-5
report was an evolutionary process in public information. She
expl ai ned that the 1996 canpaign finance revision, t he
Legislature wanted to delete the requirenent to file a 15-5
entirely, but APOC was unconfortable with that and they cane up
with a system in which a report is required only when the
contribution is nore than $500 and it nust be filed within 30
days. This was changed again in SB 103 so that candidates can
file the report on behalf of the contributor. At that point

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- April 23, 2002



since the candidate is not only filing their own report but also
filing the contributor’s report, it is no longer a useful check
and bal ance. She feels that the $500 linmit is a little chilling.
Canpai gn di sclosure reports show a lot of contributions at $499
or even $499.99 to keep the burden of reporting from
contributors. She agrees that the report is not of nuch use
anynore, but in the past it provided useful information to the
public during the times that canpaign disclosure reports aren’t
filed. It still does that to a degree with respect to large
contributions to ballot proposition groups. But other than that,
it wasn’t needed nuch.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT noted that the original disclosure amunt was
nore than $500 on the 15-5s.

M5. MLES said that the 15-5s were required when peopl e gave $250
or nore.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said there was still a provision that said as
you get close to the election if a person with either one or
mul tiple contributions over $250, you would still have the 24-
hour requirenent for filing a report.

M5. MLES said that contributors have never been required to
report in 24 hours. Contributors used to have 10 days if they
contributed nore than $250. Now they have 30 days when they give
$500. And they can't give nore than $500 to a candidate.
Candi dates nust report a contribution of nore than $250 from a
single source during the 9 days that precede the election in an
abbreviated format within 24 hours. This information is repeated
in further detail in the 10-day-after report. She noted that the
contributor reports and 24-hour reports are two different things.
She thinks that a lot of discussion cane about because APOC at
their March neeting directed staff to begin assessing civil
penalties at the statutory level of $50 per day that the
contributor reports are late. She feels that many candi dates
have concerns regarding that.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any further conments,
questions from conmttee nenbers, or anybody else who w shed to
testify.

SB 363 was held in committee.
#

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the Senate
State Affairs Conmittee nmeeting was adjourned at 5:10 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 23, 2002



